

# Senate Calendar

---

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2015

**SENATE CONVENES AT: 1:00 P.M.**

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

### ACTION CALENDAR

#### CONSIDERATION POSTPONED TO APRIL 22, 2015

##### Third Reading

- H. 98** An act relating to reportable disease registries and data .....925  
**PENDING QUESTION:** Shall the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as moved by Sens. Campbell, Mullin and Sears?

#### UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF APRIL 17, 2015

##### House Proposal of Amendment

- S. 71** An act relating to governance of the Vermont State Colleges .....926

#### NEW BUSINESS

##### Third Reading

- H. 241** An act relating to rulemaking on emergency involuntary procedures.....928

##### Second Reading

##### Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

- H. 105** An act relating to disclosure of sexually explicit images without consent  
Judiciary Report - Sen. White .....928
- H. 120** An act relating to creating a Vermont false claims act  
Judiciary Report - Sen. Sears .....935  
Substitute Amendment - Sen. Sears .....936

**NOTICE CALENDAR**

**Second Reading**

**Favorable with Proposal of Amendment**

**H. 11** An act relating to the membership of the Commission on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders  
Health and Welfare Report - Sen. Pollina .....937

**H. 488** An act relating to the State's Transportation Program and miscellaneous changes to laws related to transportation  
Transportation Report - Sen. Mazza ..... 938  
Finance Report - Sen. Westman ..... 955  
Appropriations Report - Sen. Kitchel ..... 955

**House Proposal of Amendment**

**S. 141** An act relating to possession of firearms ..... 956

**ORDERED TO LIE**

**S. 137** An act relating to penalties for selling and dispensing marijuana..... 964

---

---

**ORDERS OF THE DAY**

---

---

**ACTION CALENDAR**

**CONSIDERATION POSTPONED TO APRIL 22, 2015**

**Third Reading**

**H. 98.**

An act relating to reportable disease registries and data.

**PENDING QUESTION:** Shall the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as moved by Senators Campbell, Mullin and Sears?

**Text of proposal of amendment:**

Senators Campbell, Mullin and Sears have move that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by adding two new sections to be numbered Secs. 3 and 4 to read as follows:

Sec. 3. 18 V.S.A. § 1122 is amended to read:

§ 1122. EXEMPTIONS

(a) Notwithstanding subsections 1121(a) and (b) of this title, a person may remain in school or in ~~the~~ a child care facility without a required immunization:

(1) If the person or, in the case of a minor, the person's parent or guardian presents a form created by the ~~department~~ Department and signed by a licensed health care practitioner authorized to prescribe vaccines or a health clinic stating that the person is in the process of being immunized. The person may continue to attend school or ~~the~~ a child care facility for up to six months while the immunization process is being accomplished;

(2) If a health care practitioner, licensed to practice in Vermont and authorized to prescribe vaccines, certifies in writing that a specific immunization is or may be detrimental to the person's health or is not appropriate, provided that when a particular vaccine is no longer contraindicated, the person shall be required to receive the vaccine; ~~or,~~

(3) If the person or, in the case of a minor, the person's parent or guardian annually provides a signed statement to the school or child care facility on a form created by the ~~Vermont department of health~~ Department that the person, parent, or guardian:

(A) holds religious beliefs ~~or philosophical convictions~~ opposed to immunization; and

(B) has reviewed ~~and understands~~ evidence-based educational material provided by the ~~department of health~~ Department regarding immunizations, including:

(i) information about the risks of adverse reactions to immunization;

~~(C)~~(ii) ~~understands~~ information that failure to complete the required vaccination schedule increases risk to the person and others of contracting or carrying a vaccine-preventable infectious disease; and

~~(D)~~(iii) ~~understands~~ information that there are persons with special health needs attending schools and child care facilities who are unable to be vaccinated or who are at heightened risk of contracting a vaccine-preventable communicable disease and for whom such a disease could be life-threatening.

\* \* \*

Sec. 4. 18 V.S.A. § 1124 is amended to read:

§ 1124. ACCESS TO AND REPORTING OF IMMUNIZATION RECORDS

(a) In addition to any data collected in accordance with the requirements of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, the ~~Vermont department of health~~ Department shall annually collect from schools the immunization rates for at least those students in the first and eighth grades for each required vaccine. The data collected by the ~~department~~ Department shall include the number of medical, ~~philosophical~~, and religious exemptions filed for each required vaccine and the number of students with a provisional admittance.

\* \* \*

And by renumbering the existing Secs. 3 and 4 to be Secs. 5 and 6, respectively.

**UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF FRIDAY, APRIL 17, 2015**

**House Proposal of Amendment**

**S. 71.**

An act relating to governance of the Vermont State Colleges.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, in 16 V.S.A. chapter 72, by striking out § 2185 (determination of residency for tuition purposes) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

§ 2185. DETERMINATION OF RESIDENCY FOR TUITION PURPOSES

(a) The Board of Trustees shall adopt policies related to residency for tuition purposes, consistent with State and federal requirements.

(b) Any member of the U.S. Armed Forces of the United States on active duty who is transferred to Vermont for duty other than for the purpose of education shall, upon transfer and for the period of active duty served in Vermont, be considered a resident for in-state tuition purposes at the start of the next semester or academic period.

Second: In Sec. 1, in 16 V.S.A. § 2171, by striking out subsection (a) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to read as follows:

(a) There is created as a part of the educational system of the State of Vermont a public corporation to be known as “Vermont State Colleges,” which Colleges” or any other name that the Board of Trustees, established under section 2172 of this chapter, selects at a meeting duly warned for that purpose, provided that the word “Vermont” shall appear in the selected name. The Corporation shall plan, supervise, administer, and operate facilities for education at the postsecondary level supported in whole or in substantial part with State funds; however, while the Corporation shall maintain cooperative relations with the University of Vermont and State Agricultural College, nothing in this chapter shall give the ~~corporation~~ Corporation any responsibility for the planning, supervision, administration, or operation of the University.

Third: By adding a new section to be Sec. 2 to read as follows:

## Sec. 2. EFFECT OF AMENDMENT

In Sec. 1 of this act, 16 V.S.A. § 2171(a) is amended by authorizing the Board of Trustees established under 16 V.S.A. § 2172 to select a different name for the Corporation presently known as “Vermont State Colleges.” Notwithstanding any name that the Board of Trustees selects for the Corporation pursuant to 16 V.S.A. § 2171(a):

(1) All legal instruments executed in the name of the Vermont State Colleges or in any subsequent name selected under 16 V.S.A. § 2171(a) shall be legally binding on the Corporation.

(2) All statutory references to “Vermont State Colleges” shall mean the Corporation created under 16 V.S.A. § 2171(a).

And by renumbering the remaining sections to be numerically correct.

**NEW BUSINESS**

**Third Reading**

**H. 241.**

An act relating to rulemaking on emergency involuntary procedures.

**Second Reading**

**Favorable with Proposal of Amendment**

**H. 105.**

An act relating to disclosure of sexually explicit images without consent.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator White for the Committee on Judiciary.**

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 13 V.S.A. § 2605 is amended to read:

§ 2605. VOYEURISM

(a) As used in this section:

\* \* \*

(6) “Sexual conduct” shall have the same meaning as in section 2821 of this title.

(7) “Surveillance” means secret observation of the activities of another person for the purpose of spying upon and invading the privacy of the person.

~~(7)~~(8) “View” means the intentional looking upon another person for more than a brief period of time, in other than a casual or cursory manner, with the unaided eye or a device designed or intended to improve visual acuity.

\* \* \*

(e) No person shall intentionally photograph, film, or record in any format a person without that person’s knowledge and consent while that person is in a place where a person has a reasonable expectation of privacy and that person is engaged in a sexual ~~act as defined in section 3251 of this title~~ conduct.

\* \* \*

Sec. 2. 13 V.S.A. § 2606 is added to read:

§ 2606. DISCLOSURE OF SEXUALLY EXPLICIT IMAGES WITHOUT CONSENT

(a) As used in this section:

(1) “Disclose” includes transfer, publish, distribute, exhibit, or reproduce.

(2) “Harm” means physical injury, financial injury, or serious emotional distress.

(3) “Minor” means a person less than 18 years of age.

(4) “Nude” means any one or more of the following uncovered parts of the human body:

(A) genitals;

(B) pubic area;

(C) anus; or

(D) post-pubescent female nipple.

(5) “Sexual conduct” shall have the same meaning as in section 2821 of this title.

(6) “Visual image” includes a photograph, film, videotape, recording, or digital reproduction.

(b)(1) A person violates this section if he or she knowingly discloses a visual image of an identifiable person who is nude or who is engaged in sexual conduct, without his or her consent, with the intent to harm, harass, intimidate, threaten, or coerce the person depicted, and the disclosure would cause a reasonable person to suffer harm. A person may be identifiable from the image itself or information offered in connection with the image. Consent to recording of the visual image does not, by itself, constitute consent for disclosure of the image. A person who violates this subdivision (1) shall be imprisoned not more than two years or fined not more than \$2,000.00, or both.

(2) A person who violates subdivision (1) of this subsection with the intent of disclosing the image for financial profit and causes harm to the person depicted shall be imprisoned not more than five years or fined not more than \$10,000.00, or both.

(c) A person who maintains an Internet website, online service, online application, or mobile application that contains a visual image of an identifiable person who is nude or who is engaged in sexual conduct shall not solicit or accept a fee or other consideration to remove, delete, correct, modify, or refrain from posting or disclosing the visual image if requested by the depicted person.

(d) This section shall not apply to:

(1) Images involving voluntary nudity or sexual conduct in public or commercial settings or in a place where a person does not have a reasonable expectation of privacy.

(2) Disclosures made in the public interest, including the reporting of unlawful conduct, or lawful and common practices of law enforcement, criminal reporting, corrections, legal proceedings, or medical treatment.

(3) Disclosures of materials that constitute a matter of public concern.

(4) Interactive computer services, as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 230(f)(2), or information services or telecommunications services, as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 153, for content solely provided by another person. This subdivision shall not preclude other remedies available at law.

(e)(1) A plaintiff shall have a private cause of action against a defendant who knowingly discloses, without the plaintiff's consent, an identifiable visual image of the plaintiff while he or she is nude or engaged in sexual conduct and the disclosure causes the plaintiff harm.

(2) In addition to any other relief available at law, the Court may order equitable relief, including a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction, or a permanent injunction ordering the defendant to cease display or disclosure of the image. The Court may grant injunctive relief maintaining the confidentiality of a plaintiff using a pseudonym.

Sec. 3. 9 V.S.A. chapter 117 is redesignated to read:

#### CHAPTER 117. INTERNET SALES COMMERCE

Sec. 4. 9 V.S.A. § 4191 is added to read:

#### § 4191. REMOVAL OF BOOKING PHOTOGRAPHS FROM THE INTERNET; FEES PROHIBITED

(a) As used in this section, "booking photograph" means any photograph taken by a law enforcement office or other authorized person pursuant to 20 V.S.A. chapter 117.

(b) A person who posts or otherwise disseminates a booking photograph on the Internet shall not solicit or accept a fee or other consideration to remove, delete, correct, modify, or refrain from posting or disseminating the booking photograph if requested by the depicted person.

(c) A person who violates subsection (b) of this section shall be assessed a civil penalty of not more than \$1,000.00 for the first violation and not more than \$2,500.00 for each subsequent violation.



(d) A person who sustains damages or injury as a result of a violation of this section may bring an action in Superior Court for damages, injunctive relief, punitive damages in the case of a willful violation, and reasonable costs and attorney's fees. The Court may issue an award for the person's actual damages or \$500.00 for a first violation, or \$1,000.00 for each subsequent violation, whichever is greater. This subsection shall not limit any other claims a person who sustains damages or injury as a result of a violation of this section may have under applicable law.

(e) This section shall not be construed to limit a person's liability under any other law.

Sec. 5. 4 V.S.A. § 1102 is amended to read:

§ 1102. JUDICIAL BUREAU; JURISDICTION

\* \* \*

(b) The Judicial Bureau shall have jurisdiction of the following matters:

\* \* \*

(26) Violations of 9 V.S.A. § 4191 relating to the solicitation or acceptance of a fee to remove a booking photograph from the Internet.

\* \* \*

Sec. 6. 20 V.S.A. § 2358(b)(1) and (2), as amended by 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 141, Sec. 5, are amended to read:

(1) Level I certification.

(A) An applicant for certification as a Level I law enforcement officer shall first complete an off-site training program prior to entering and completing Level I basic training. Level I basic training shall include training to react to the circumstances described in subdivision (B) of this subdivision (1).

(B)(i) The scope of practice of a Level I law enforcement officer shall be limited to security, transport, vehicle escorts, and traffic control, as those terms are defined by the Council by rule, except that a Level I officer may react in the following circumstances if the officer determines that it is necessary to do any of the following:

(I) protect an individual in the presence of the officer from the imminent infliction of serious bodily injury;

(II) provide immediate assistance to an individual who has suffered or is threatened with serious bodily injury;

(III) detain or arrest an individual ~~whom~~ who the officer reasonably believes has committed a crime in the presence of the officer; or

(IV) detain or arrest an individual ~~whom~~ who the officer reasonably believes has committed a felony under Vermont law.

(ii) If a Level I officer reacts to any of the circumstances described in subdivision (i) of this subdivision (B), he or she shall call upon an officer certified to respond and assume law enforcement authority over the incident.

(2) Level II certification.

(A) An applicant for certification as a Level II law enforcement officer shall first complete Level II basic training and may then become certified in a specialized practice area as set forth in subdivision (B)(ii) of this subdivision (2). Level II basic training shall include training to respond to calls regarding alleged crimes in progress and to react to the circumstances described in subdivision (B)(iii) of this subdivision (2).

(B)(i) Except as provided in subdivisions (ii) and (iii) of this subdivision (B), the scope of practice of a Level II law enforcement officer shall be limited to investigating the following matters:

(I) 7 V.S.A. § 658 (sale or furnishing to minors; enabling consumption by minors);

(II) 13 V.S.A. chapter 7 (advertisements);

~~(III)~~(III) 13 V.S.A. chapter 8 (humane and proper treatment of animals);

(IV) 13 V.S.A. §§ 505 (fourth degree arson), 508 (setting fires), and 509 (attempts);

~~(V)~~(V) 13 V.S.A. chapter 19, subchapter 1 (riots);

~~(VI)~~(VI) 13 V.S.A. §§ 1022 (noise in the nighttime), 1023 (simple assault), 1025 (recklessly endangering another person), 1026 (disorderly conduct), ~~and~~ 1027 (disturbing peace by use of telephone or other electronic communications), 1030 (violation of an abuse prevention order, an order against stalking or sexual assault, or a protective order concerning contact with a child), 1031 (interference with access to emergency services), 1042 (domestic assault), and 1062 (stalking);

~~(VII)~~(VII) 13 V.S.A. chapter 35 (escape);

~~(VIII)~~(VIII) 13 V.S.A. chapter 41 (false alarms and reports);

~~(IX)~~(IX) 13 V.S.A. chapter 45 (flags and ensigns);

~~(VIII)~~(X) 13 V.S.A. chapter 47 (frauds);  
~~(IX)~~(XI) 13 V.S.A. chapter 49 (fraud in commercial transactions);  
~~(X)~~(XII) 13 V.S.A. chapter 51 (gambling and lotteries);  
~~(XI)~~(XIII) 13 V.S.A. chapter 57 (larceny and embezzlement), except for subchapter 2 (embezzlement);  
~~(XII)~~(XIV) 13 V.S.A. chapter 67 (public justice and public officers);  
~~(XIII)~~(XV) 13 V.S.A. chapter 69 (railroads);  
~~(XIV)~~(XVI) 13 V.S.A. chapter 77 (trees and plants);  
~~(XV)~~(XVII) 13 V.S.A. chapter 81 (trespass and malicious injuries to property);  
~~(XVI)~~(XVIII) 13 V.S.A. chapter 83 (vagrants);  
~~(XVII)~~(XIX) 13 V.S.A. chapter 85 (weapons);  
~~(XVIII)~~(XX) 18 V.S.A. §§ 4230(a), 4230c, and 4230d (marijuana possession);  
(XXI) 18 V.S.A. § 4231(a) (cocaine possession);  
(XXII) 18 V.S.A. § 4232(a) (LSD possession);  
(XXIII) 18 V.S.A. § 4233(a) (heroin possession);  
(XXIV) 18 V.S.A. § 4234(a) (depressant, stimulant, or narcotic drug possession);  
(XXV) 18 V.S.A. § 4234a(a) (methamphetamine possession);  
(XXVI) 18 V.S.A. § 4235(b) (hallucinogenic drug possession);  
(XXVII) 18 V.S.A. § 4235a(a) (ecstasy possession);  
(XXVIII) 18 V.S.A. § 4476 (drug paraphernalia offenses);  
(XXIX) 21 V.S.A. § 692(c)(2) (criminal violation of stop-work order);  
(XXX) any misdemeanor set forth in Title 23 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated, except for 23 V.S.A. chapter 13, subchapter 13 (drunken driving), 23 V.S.A. § 3207a (snowmobiling under the influence), 23 V.S.A. § 3323 (boating under the influence), or 23 V.S.A. § 3506(b)(8) (operating an all-terrain vehicle under the influence);

(XXXI) any motor vehicle accident that includes property damage and injuries, as permitted by the Council by rule;

(XXXII) any matter within the jurisdiction of the Judicial Bureau as set forth in 4 V.S.A. § 1102;

~~(XIX)~~(XXXIII) municipal ordinance violations;

~~(XX)~~(XXXIV) any matter within the jurisdiction of a game warden or deputy game warden as set forth in 10 V.S.A. chapter 103, subchapter 4 (game wardens); and

~~(XXI)~~(XXXV) any matter within the scope of practice of a Level I law enforcement officer.

(ii) In addition to the scope of practice permitted under subdivision (i) of this subdivision (B), a Level II law enforcement officer may also practice in additional areas approved in writing by the Council based on a special certification or training approved by the Council ~~pursuant to rules adopted by the Council.~~

(iii) Notwithstanding the limitations set forth in subdivisions (i) and (ii) of this subdivision (B), a Level II officer may respond to calls regarding alleged crimes in progress and may react in the following circumstances if the officer determines that it is necessary to do any of the following:

(I) protect an individual in the presence of the officer from the imminent infliction of serious bodily injury;

(II) provide immediate assistance to an individual who has suffered or is threatened with serious bodily injury;

(III) detain or arrest an individual ~~whom~~ who the officer reasonably believes has committed a crime in the presence of the officer; or

(IV) detain or arrest an individual ~~whom~~ who the officer reasonably believes has committed a felony under Vermont law.

(iv) If a Level II officer responds to calls regarding alleged crimes in progress or reacts to any of the circumstances described in subdivision (iii) of this subdivision (B) and that response or reaction is outside the scope of his or her scope of practice, he or she shall call upon an officer certified to respond and assume law enforcement authority over the incident.

## Sec. 7. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

And that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read:

An act relating to disclosure of sexually explicit images without consent, charging fees for removing booking photographs from the Internet, and expanding the scope of practice of Level II certified law enforcement officers.

(Committee vote: 4-1-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 17, 2015, page 416 and March 18, 2015, page 439)

#### **H. 120.**

An act relating to creating a Vermont false claims act.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Sears for the Committee on Judiciary.**

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 631, in subsection (c) subdivision (3), by striking out the words “the false claims law” and inserting in lieu thereof the words this subchapter.

Second: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 632, in subsection (b) subdivision (3), by striking out the words “in an electronic format determined by the Attorney General” and inserting in lieu thereof the words be made in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure.

Third: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 633, in subsection (c), by striking out the words “in an electronic format determined by the Attorney General” and inserting in lieu thereof the words be made in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure.

Fourth: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 635, in subsection (a), by striking out both instances of the following: “subsection (b) of this section” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: subsection 632(b) of this chapter.

Fifth: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 636, in subsection (b), by inserting after the word “administrative” the words civil money penalty.

Sixth: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 639, in subsection (a) subdivision (2), by striking out the following:

“circumstances, but in no event more than 10 years after the date on which the violation is committed; whichever occurs last.” and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

circumstances, but in no event more than 10 years after the date on which the violation is committed;

whichever occurs last.

Seventh: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 639, by inserting a new subsection (d) to read as follows:

(d) Notwithstanding any other general or special law, rule of procedure or rule of evidence to the contrary, a final judgment rendered in favor of the State in any criminal proceeding charging false statements or fraud, whether upon a verdict after trial or upon a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, shall estop the defendant from denying the essential elements of the offense in any action which involves the same transaction as in the criminal proceeding and which is brought under section 632 of this chapter.

Eighth: In Sec. 2, by striking out the catchline (effective date) and inserting in lieu thereof a new catchline to read: EFFECTIVE DATES and by inserting after the word “passage” the following: , except for 32 V.S.A. § 639(b) which shall take effect on March 15, 2016.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 11, 2015, page 378)

**Substitute proposal of amendment to H. 120 to be offered by Senator  
Sears**

Senator Sears moves to substitute the following for the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Judiciary, as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 631, in subsection (c), subdivision (3), by striking out the words “the false claims law” and inserting in lieu thereof the words this subchapter

Second: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 632, in subsection (b), subdivision (3), by striking out the words “in an electronic format determined by the Attorney General” and inserting in lieu thereof the words in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure

Third: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 633, in subsection (c), by striking out the words “in an electronic format determined by the Attorney General” and inserting in lieu thereof the words in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure

Fourth: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 635, in subsection (a), by striking out “subsection (b) of this section” where it twice appears and inserting in lieu thereof the following: subsection 632(b) of this chapter

Fifth: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 636, in subsection (b), after the word “administrative” by inserting the words civil money penalty

Sixth: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 639, in subsection (a), subdivision (2), by striking out the following:

“circumstances, but in no event more than 10 years after the date on which the violation is committed; whichever occurs last.” and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

circumstances, but in no event more than 10 years after the date on which the violation is committed;

whichever occurs last.

Seventh: In Sec. 1, in 32 V.S.A. § 639, by inserting a new subsection to be subsection (d) to read:

(d) Notwithstanding any other general or special law, rule of procedure or rule of evidence to the contrary, a final judgment rendered in favor of the State in any criminal proceeding charging false statements or fraud, whether upon a verdict after trial or upon a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, shall estop the defendant from denying the essential elements of the offense in any action which involves the same transaction as in the criminal proceeding and which is brought under section 632 of this chapter.

Eighth: In Sec. 2, by striking out the catchline (effective date) and inserting in lieu thereof a new catchline to read: EFFECTIVE DATES and after the word “passage” by inserting the following: , except for 32 V.S.A. § 639(b) which shall take effect on March 15, 2016

## NOTICE CALENDAR

### Second Reading

#### Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

#### H. 11.

An act relating to the membership of the Commission on Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Disorders.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Pollina for the Committee on Health & Welfare.**

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill in Sec. 1, 18 V.S.A. § 3085a, by striking out subsection (c) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(c) Eight of the members appointed by the Governor shall serve terms of two years and eight of the members shall serve terms of three years. Members shall serve until their successors are appointed. Members first appointed to the Commission prior to January 1, 2015, may apply to serve no more than one additional term of either two or three years following the expiration of their current term. Members first appointed to the Commission after January 1, 2015, shall serve a maximum of two terms. A member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring other than by expiration of a term shall be appointed only for the unexpired portion of the term, and if the unexpired portion of the term is less than or equal to one year, the member appointed to fill the vacancy occurring other than by expiration of a term may thereafter apply to serve a maximum of two additional terms.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 31, 2015, page 689)

#### **H. 488.**

An act relating to the State's Transportation Program and miscellaneous changes to laws related to transportation.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Mazza for the Committee on Transportation.**

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

\* \* \* Transportation Program; Definitions \* \* \*

#### Sec. 1. TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM ADOPTED; DEFINITIONS

(a) The Agency of Transportation's proposed fiscal year 2016 Transportation Program appended to the Agency of Transportation's proposed fiscal year 2016 budget, as amended by this act, is adopted to the extent federal, State, and local funds are available.

(b) As used in this act, unless otherwise indicated:

(1) "Agency" means the Agency of Transportation.

(2) "Secretary" means the Secretary of Transportation.

(3) The table heading "As Proposed" means the Transportation Program referenced in subsection (a) of this section; the table heading "As Amended" means the amendments as made by this act; the table heading "Change" means the difference obtained by subtracting the "As Proposed" figure from the "As Amended" figure; and the term "change" or "changes" in the text refers to the



project- and program-specific amendments, the aggregate sum of which equals the net “Change” in the applicable table heading.

(4) “TIB funds” or “TIB” refers to monies deposited in the Transportation Infrastructure Bond Fund in accordance with 19 V.S.A. § 11f.

\* \* \* Personnel-related Savings \* \* \*

## Sec. 2. FISCAL YEAR 2016 PERSONNEL-RELATED SAVINGS

In addition to all other reductions in spending authority under this act, overall fiscal year 2016 Transportation Program spending is reduced by \$1,500,000.00 in transportation funds, to be achieved through a combination of personnel, labor, or consultant cost savings identified by the Secretary.

\* \* \* Program Development – Funding \* \* \*

## Sec. 3. PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT – FUNDING

(a) Spending authority in Program Development in fiscal year 2016 is modified in accordance with this section. Among projects selected in the Secretary’s discretion in accordance with subsection (b) of this section, the Secretary shall:

(1) increase project spending authority in the total amount of \$3,514,996.00 in transportation funds;

(2) reduce project spending authority in the total amount of \$6,600,000.00 in TIB funds; and

(3) reduce project spending authority in the total amount of \$12,340,016.00 in federal funds.

(b) In exercising his or her discretion to select projects on which spending will be reduced, the Secretary shall not delay a project that otherwise would proceed in fiscal year 2016, unless the full amount of the reduction required under subsection (a) of this section cannot be achieved from project savings or unforeseen delays that prevent a project from proceeding in fiscal year 2016. If a project that otherwise would have proceeded in fiscal year 2016 is delayed, the Secretary shall promptly notify:

(1) the House and Senate Committees on Transportation when the General Assembly is in session; or

(2) the Joint Transportation Oversight Committee and the Joint Fiscal Committee Office when the General Assembly is not in session.

\* \* \* Contingent Spending Authority \* \* \*

## Sec. 3a. CONTINGENT SPENDING AUTHORITY; DELAYED PROJECTS AND PAVING PROGRAM PROJECTS OR ACTIVITIES

(a) As used in this section:

(1) The phrase “net balance” means an overall positive balance consisting of either the sum of any unreserved monies in the Transportation Fund and TIB Fund remaining at the end of fiscal year 2015, or the overall positive balance in either Fund at the end of fiscal year 2015 after subtracting any deficit in the other Fund.

(2) The phrase “net increase” means an overall increase in forecasted revenues under the July 2015 consensus revenue forecast over the January 2015 consensus revenue forecast for fiscal year 2016, consisting of either the sum of forecasted increases in Transportation Fund and TIB Fund revenues, or an overall increase in forecasted revenues after subtracting a forecasted downgrade in either Fund.

(b) Subject to the funding of the Transportation Fund Stabilization Reserve in accordance with 32 V.S.A. § 308a and to the limitations of 19 V.S.A. § 11f (Transportation Infrastructure Bond Fund), and notwithstanding 32 V.S.A. § 308c (Transportation Fund Balance Reserve), if any net balance exists at the end of fiscal year 2015, or if there is a net increase in the July 2015 consensus revenue forecast, up to a total amount of \$3,000,000.00 of the net balance and the net increase, and up to a total amount of \$12,000,000.00 in matching federal funds, is authorized for expenditure and is hereby appropriated to be used on a project that otherwise would be required to be delayed under Sec. 3 of this act.

(c) If the full amount of any net balance and net increase is not expended under subsection (a) of this section, the remaining amount is authorized for expenditure and is hereby appropriated to advance Paving Program projects or to increase Statewide Paving Program activities in the Transportation Program adopted under this act.

(d) If the Agency expends funds under the authority of this section, it shall notify the House and Senate Committees on Transportation when the General Assembly is in session, or the Joint Transportation Oversight Committee when the General Assembly is not in session.

\* \* \* Maintenance Program \* \* \*

#### Sec. 4. MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

(a) Total authorized spending in the Maintenance Program is amended as follows:

| <u>FY 16</u>       | <u>As Proposed</u> | <u>As Amended</u> | <u>Change</u> |
|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------|---------------|
| Personal services  | 43,784,445         | 43,784,445        | 0             |
| Operating expenses | 43,890,139         | 43,190,139        | -700,000      |
| Grants             | 95,000             | 95,000            | 0             |
| Total              | 87,769,584         | 87,069,584        | -700,000      |

Sources of funds

|                     |            |            |          |
|---------------------|------------|------------|----------|
| State               | 83,169,447 | 82,469,447 | -700,000 |
| Federal             | 4,500,137  | 4,500,137  | 0        |
| Interdep't transfer | 100,000    | 100,000    | 0        |
| Total               | 87,769,584 | 87,069,584 | -700,000 |

(b) The reduction in authorized Maintenance Program spending under subsection (a) of this section shall be allocated among maintenance activities as specified by the Secretary.

\* \* \* Town Highway Structures \* \* \*

Sec. 5. TOWN HIGHWAY STRUCTURES

Spending authority for Town Highway Structures Program is amended to read:

| <u>FY 16</u> | <u>As Proposed</u> | <u>As Amended</u> | <u>Change</u> |
|--------------|--------------------|-------------------|---------------|
| Grants       | 6,333,500          | 9,483,500         | 3,150,000     |
| Total        | 6,333,500          | 9,483,500         | 3,150,000     |

Sources of funds

|         |           |           |           |
|---------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State   | 6,333,500 | 9,483,500 | 3,150,000 |
| Federal | 0         | 0         | 0         |
| Total   | 6,333,500 | 9,483,500 | 3,150,000 |

\* \* \* Town Highway Bridge Program \* \* \*

Sec. 6. TOWN HIGHWAY BRIDGE PROGRAM; PROJECT CANCELLATION

Pursuant to 19 V.S.A. § 10g(h) (legislative approval for cancellation of projects), the General Assembly approves cancellation of the following project from the Town Highway Bridge Program candidate list: Fair Haven BO 1443() (scoping for BR2 on TH45).

\* \* \* Rest Areas \* \* \*

Sec. 7. REST AREAS PROGRAM; PROJECT CANCELLATION

Pursuant to 19 V.S.A. § 10g(h) (legislative approval for cancellation of projects), the General Assembly approves cancellation of the following Rest Areas Program project: Derby IM 091-3(8) (expansion of Derby I-91 rest area).

Sec. 8. REST AREAS PROGRAM; PROJECT ADDITION

The following project is added to the candidate list of the Rest Areas Program within the fiscal year 2016 Transportation Program: Derby IM 091-3 ( ) (rehabilitation of Derby I-91 rest area).

\* \* \* Central Garage \* \* \*

Sec. 9. TRANSFER TO CENTRAL GARAGE FUND

Notwithstanding 19 V.S.A. § 13(c), in fiscal year 2016, the amount of \$162,504.00 is transferred from the Transportation Fund to the Central Garage Fund created in 19 V.S.A. § 13.

\* \* \* Transportation Funding Analysis \* \* \*

Sec. 10. AGENCY ANALYSIS OF TRANSPORTATION FUNDING

(a) The Agency shall identify and evaluate funding sources, other than motor vehicle fuel taxes, that will be sufficient to maintain the State's transportation system, accounting for State and federal policies that have and will continue to reduce motor vehicle fuel consumption. In conducting this analysis, the Agency shall:

(1) review current State and federal transportation funding sources and policies, as well as policies and trends that have and will continue to reduce motor vehicle fuel consumption;

(2) review and expand on the funding options contained in the report on transportation funding required by 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 153, Sec. 40; and

(3) review the actions of other states and provinces that have reduced or eliminated motor vehicle fuel taxes and replaced them with other funding sources.

(b) The Agency also shall identify and evaluate funding sources, other than local property taxes, to support the local share of increasing costs or the expansion of public transportation services statewide.

(c) The Agency shall deliver a written report of its findings and any recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Transportation on or before January 15, 2016.

\* \* \* Study of Commuter Rail and Bus Service \* \* \*

Sec. 11. STUDY OF MONTPELIER TO ST. ALBANS COMMUTER RAIL SERVICE, ALBANY TO BENNINGTON TO MANCHESTER BUS SERVICE

(a) The Agency shall study the financial and operational feasibility of a commuter rail service in the corridor between St. Albans, Essex Junction, and Montpelier, with connecting service to Burlington, and shall report its findings and any recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Transportation on or before January 15, 2017.

(b) The Agency shall study the expected benefits and costs to the State of Vermont, implementation steps, and timeline associated with various models for initiating and operating an Albany to Bennington to Manchester bus service, and shall report its findings and any recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Transportation on or before January 15, 2016.

\* \* \* Review of Transportation Service Programs \* \* \*

Sec. 12. REVIEW OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROGRAM

(a) The Agency, in consultation with the Agency of Human Services and interested stakeholders, shall review the Elders and Persons with Disability Transportation Program (E&D Program). In carrying out its review, the Agency shall analyze:

(1) the gap between current and projected E&D Program resources and needs over a 10-year time frame, on regional and statewide levels;

(2) regional transportation service delivery models and their adequacy in meeting E&D Program participant needs;

(3) opportunities to achieve efficiencies by coordinating E&D Program and other human services transportation programs, and obstacles to achieving such efficiencies;

(4) challenges that exist for partner organizations to raise local matching funds for transportation services;

(5) the current and expected impact of Medicaid waiver programs on the E&D Program; and

(6) existing and emerging technology and the potential role it could play in increasing service to elders and persons with disabilities.

(b) The Agency shall submit a written report of its findings and any recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Transportation on or before January 15, 2016.

\* \* \* Authority of the Agency and Secretary \* \* \*

Sec. 13. 5 V.S.A. § 204 is amended to read:

§ 204. POWERS OF AGENCY GENERALLY

(a) To carry out the purposes of this part, the Agency of Transportation shall have power, subject to subsection (b) of this section:

(1) To contract in the name of the State with individuals, firms, or corporations, with officials of a town, city, or village, with officials of a group of either or both of such governmental units, with officials of another state, or with officials or agencies of the federal government to carry out the purposes of this part.

(2) To receive, manage, use, or expend, for purposes directed by the donor, gifts, grants, or contributions of any name or nature made to the State for the promotion or development of aeronautics or for aeronautics facilities. The authority granted in this subdivision shall be subject to the provisions of 32 V.S.A. § 5.

\* \* \*

Sec. 14. 5 V.S.A. § 206 is amended to read:

§ 206. ~~COOPERATION WITH UNITED STATES; FEDERAL AND OTHER MONEYS MONIES RECEIVED; DEPOSIT, DESIGNATION, APPROPRIATION, AND DISBURSEMENT~~

(a) The ~~agency~~ Agency is authorized to cooperate with the government of the United States in the acquisition, construction, improvement, maintenance, and operation of airports and other navigation facilities in this ~~state~~ State, and to comply with the provisions of the laws or regulations of the United States for the expenditure of federal ~~moneys~~ monies upon airports and other air navigation facilities.

(b) ~~It~~ The Agency is authorized to accept, receive, and receipt for federal ~~moneys~~ monies and other ~~moneys~~ monies, either public or private, for and in behalf of this ~~state~~ State, appropriated to the Agency or that have been approved for receipt pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5 or 511.

(c) All ~~moneys~~ monies accepted for disbursement by the ~~agency~~ Agency pursuant to subsection (b) of this section shall be deposited in the ~~state treasury~~ State Treasury and, unless otherwise prescribed by the authority from which the money is received, kept in separate funds, designated according to the

purposes for which the ~~moneys~~ monies were made available, and held by the ~~state~~ State in trust for such purposes. All ~~moneys are hereby appropriated for the purposes for which they were made available, to~~ monies shall be expended for the purposes for which they were made available and in accordance with federal laws and regulations and with this chapter. The ~~agency~~ Agency is authorized, whether acting for this ~~state~~ State or as the agent of any of its municipalities, or when requested by the ~~United States~~ U.S. government or any agency or department of the ~~United States~~ U.S. government, to disburse such ~~moneys~~ monies for the designated purposes, but this shall not preclude any other authorized method of disbursement.

Sec. 15. 19 V.S.A. § 1502 is amended to read:

§ 1502. COOPERATION WITH COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL GOVERNMENT REQUIREMENTS; USE OF FEDERAL AID MONEY

(a) To effect the purposes of section 1501 of this title, the ~~agency~~ Agency may comply with federal rules and regulations, and may use so much of the funds appropriated to the Agency, or available to it pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5 or 511, for highway purposes as shall be necessary to secure aid from the federal government under the federal act specified in section 1501; and in addition may use ~~further~~ such sums as may be necessary for surveys, plans, specifications, estimates, and assistance necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

(b) To carry out the transportation planning process required by the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (~~the Act~~), ~~Pub. L. No. 102-240, § 1024, 105 Stat. 1914, 1955 (1991) (now codified at 23 U.S.C. § 134), as may be amended,~~ the ~~governor~~ Governor shall designate a metropolitan planning organization for any urbanized area of more than 50,000 population and may take other action necessary to ensure the ~~state's~~ State's compliance with the ~~federal act~~ Act and any federal regulations pertaining to the ~~act~~ Act. A designation of a metropolitan planning organization shall remain in effect until revoked by the ~~governor~~ Governor.

Sec. 16. 19 V.S.A. chapter 1 is amended to read:

CHAPTER 1. STATE HIGHWAY LAW; GENERAL TRANSPORTATION PROVISIONS

\* \* \*

§ 7. SECRETARY; POWERS AND DUTIES

(a) The Agency shall be under the direction and supervision of a Secretary, who shall be appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate and shall serve at the pleasure of the Governor.

(b) The Secretary shall be responsible to the Governor and shall plan, coordinate, and direct the functions vested in the Agency in accord with the transportation policies established ~~by the Agency under section 10b~~ of this title.

(c) The Secretary may, with the approval of the Governor, transfer classified positions between the Department, Divisions, and other components of the Agency, subject only to personnel laws and rules.

(d) The Secretary shall determine the administrative, operational, and functional policies of the Agency and be accountable to the Governor for these determinations. The Secretary shall exercise the powers and shall perform the duties required for the Agency's effective administration.

(e) In addition to other duties imposed by law, the Secretary shall:

- (1) administer the laws assigned to the Agency;
- (2) coordinate and integrate the work of the Agency;
- (3) supervise and control all staff functions; and

(4) whenever the Agency is developing preliminary plans for a new or replacement maintenance facility or salt shed, first conduct a review of all previously developed building plans and give priority to utilizing a common, uniform, preexisting design.

(f) The Secretary may, within the authority of relevant State and federal statutes and regulations:

(1) ~~within the authority of relevant State and federal statutes and regulations~~, transfer appropriations or parts of appropriations within or between the department, divisions, and sections;

(2) cooperate with the appropriate federal agencies and receive federal funds in support of programs within the Agency;

(3) submit plans and reports, and in other respects comply with federal laws and regulations which pertain to programs administered by the Agency;

(4) make rules consistent with the law for the internal administration of the Agency and its programs;

(5) create advisory councils or committees as he or she deems necessary within the Agency, and appoint the members for a term not exceeding his or



hers. Councils or committees created pursuant to this subdivision may include persons who are not officers or employees of the Agency;

(6) provide training and instruction for ~~any~~ employees of the Agency at the expense of the Agency, and provide training and instruction for employees of Vermont municipalities. Where appropriate, the Secretary may provide training and instruction for municipal employees at the expense of the Agency;

(7) organize, reorganize, transfer, or abolish sections and staff function sections within the Agency; except however, the Secretary may not alter the number of highway districts without legislative approval.

(8) ~~[Deleted.]~~ [Repealed.]

\* \* \*

\* \* \* Middlebury Rail Tunnel Project \* \* \*

#### Sec. 17. MIDDLEBURY RAIL TUNNEL PROJECT

Notwithstanding 5 V.S.A. § 3670(a) and (b), the Middlebury WCRS(23) Project (to replace the existing Merchants Row and Main Street bridges over the Vermont Railway line and to lower the grade of the Vermont Railway line) may be constructed without the prior approval of the Transportation Board to provide a minimum vertical clearance of 21' 0" over the highest track elevation, but only if the Agency, Vermont Railway, Inc., and any affected municipality agree in writing to the 21' 0" minimum vertical clearance.

\* \* \* Potable Water Supply and Wastewater Systems Permits \* \* \*

Sec. 18. 10 V.S.A. § 1974 is amended to read:

#### § 1974. EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other requirements of this chapter, the following projects and actions are exempt:

\* \* \*

(7) the subdivision of an unimproved or improved lot or campground where the subdivision results from a transfer of property for a highway or other transportation project that is authorized under the State's enacted Transportation Program or is an emergency project within the meaning of 19 V.S.A. § 10g(h), regardless of whether the State or the municipality has commenced any condemnation proceedings in connection with the project.

\* \* \* Highway Division Director \* \* \*

Sec. 19. 19 V.S.A. § 9(a) is amended to read:

(a) A director shall administer each division created within the ~~agency~~ Agency. The ~~secretary~~ Secretary shall appoint the directors, who shall be exempt from the classified service. The Director of the Highway Division shall be licensed as a professional engineer.

\* \* \* Clean Water \* \* \*

Sec. 20. 19 V.S.A. § 38 is amended to read:

§ 38. TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES GRANT PROGRAM

\* \* \*

(f) Each year, ~~\$200,000.00~~ \$1,100,000.00 of the Grant Program funds, or such lesser sum if all eligible applications amount to less than ~~\$200,000.00~~ \$1,100,000.00, shall be reserved for municipalities for environmental mitigation projects relating to stormwater and highways, including eligible salt and sand shed projects. ~~Grant awards for eligible projects shall not exceed \$50,000.00 per project.~~ Regarding the balance of Grant Program funds, in evaluating applications for Transportation Alternatives grants, the Transportation Alternatives Grant Committee shall give preferential weighting to projects involving as a primary feature a bicycle or pedestrian facility. The degree of preferential weighting and the circumstantial factors sufficient to overcome the weighting shall be in the complete discretion of the Transportation Alternatives Grant Committee.

\* \* \*

Sec. 21. 19 V.S.A. § 306(i) is added to read:

(i) Monies disbursed from the Clean Water Fund established in 10 V.S.A. § 1388 for municipalities for environmental mitigation projects related to stormwater and highways shall be administered by the Agency through the Municipal Mitigation Grant Program. Grants provided to municipalities under the Program shall be matched by local funds sufficient to cover 20 percent of the project costs.

\* \* \* State Highway Bridge Program; Causeway Scoping Study \* \* \*

Sec. 22. STATE HIGHWAY BRIDGE PROGRAM

(a) The following project is added to the State Highway Bridge Program: Missisquoi Bay Causeway Scoping Study.

(b) Spending authority for the Missisquoi Bay Causeway Scoping Study is authorized as follows:

| <u>FY 16</u>            | <u>As Proposed</u> | <u>As Amended</u> | <u>Change</u> |
|-------------------------|--------------------|-------------------|---------------|
| PE                      | 0                  | 125,000           | 125,000       |
| Construction            | 0                  | 0                 | 0             |
| Total                   | 0                  | 125,000           | 125,000       |
| <u>Sources of funds</u> |                    |                   |               |
| State                   | 0                  | 0                 | 0             |
| TIB                     | 0                  | 0                 | 0             |
| Federal                 | 0                  | 100,000           | 100,000       |
| Special                 | 0                  | 25,000            | 25,000        |
| Total                   | 0                  | 125,000           | 125,000       |

\* \* \* Motor Fuel Transportation Infrastructure Assessment \* \* \*

Sec. 23. 23 V.S.A. § 3106 is amended to read:

§ 3106. IMPOSITION, RATE, AND PAYMENT OF TAX

(a)(1) Except for sales of motor fuels between distributors licensed in this State, which sales shall be exempt from the taxes and assessments authorized under this section, unless exempt under the laws of the United States at the time of filing the report required by section 3108 of this title, each distributor shall pay to the Commissioner:

(A) a tax of \$0.121 upon each gallon of motor fuel sold by the distributor; and

(B) the following assessments, ~~which shall be levied on the tax-adjusted retail price of gasoline as defined herein:~~

(i) a motor fuel transportation infrastructure assessment ~~in the amount of that is the greater of:~~

(I) \$0.0396; or

(II) two percent of the tax-adjusted retail price upon each gallon of motor fuel sold by the distributor; and

(ii) a fuel tax assessment, which shall be used exclusively for transportation purposes and not be transferred from the Transportation Fund, that is the greater of:

(I) \$0.134 per gallon; or

(II) four percent of the tax-adjusted retail price or \$0.18 per gallon, whichever is less, upon each gallon of motor fuel sold by the distributor.

\* \* \*

\* \* \* Welcome Center and Airport Namings \* \* \*

Sec. 24. 29 V.S.A. § 821(a) is amended to read:

(a) State buildings.

\* \* \*

(11) “Senator James M. Jeffords Welcome Center” shall be the name of the Welcome Center in Bennington.

(12) “Northeast Kingdom International Airport” shall be the name of the Newport State Airport in Coventry.

\* \* \* Process for Naming of Transportation Facilities \* \* \*

Sec. 25. 10 V.S.A. § 152 is amended to read:

§ 152. AUTHORITY TO NAME ROADS AND GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS

The ~~board of libraries~~ Board of Libraries is hereby designated the ~~state~~ State agency to name ~~roads and~~ geographic locations including ~~but not limited to~~ mountains, streams, lakes, and ponds upon petition signed by not less than 25 interested persons or by petition of an administrative department of the ~~state~~ State.

Sec. 26. 10 V.S.A. § 153 is amended to read:

§ 153. PROCEDURE

When the ~~board~~ Board receives a petition to act under section 152 of this title it shall give reasonable notice to each administrative department of the ~~state~~ State having jurisdiction of the ~~road or~~ location to be named, and to each town in which the ~~road or~~ location lies of the time and place when it will hear all interested parties.

Sec. 27. 19 V.S.A. § 5 is amended to read:

§ 5. TRANSPORTATION BOARD; POWERS AND DUTIES

(a) The regulatory and quasi-judicial functions relating to transportation shall be vested in the ~~transportation board~~.

~~(b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section, Board, except that the duties and responsibilities of the commissioner of motor vehicles~~

Commissioner of Motor Vehicles in Titles 23 and 32, including all quasi-judicial powers, shall continue to be vested in ~~that individual~~ the Commissioner.

(b)(1) Except as otherwise authorized by law, the Board is the sole authority responsible for naming transportation facilities owned, controlled, or maintained by the State, including highways and the bridges thereon, airports, rail facilities, rest areas, and welcome centers. The Board shall exercise its naming authority only upon petition of the legislative body of a municipality of the State, of the head of an Executive Branch agency or department of the State, or of 50 Vermont residents.

(2) The Board shall hold a public hearing for each facility requested to be named. The Board shall adopt rules governing notice and conduct of hearings, the standards to be applied in rendering decisions under this subsection, and any other matter necessary for the just disposition of naming requests. The Board shall issue a decision, which shall be subject to review on the record by a Superior Court pursuant to Rule 74 of the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure. The Board may delegate the responsibility to hold a hearing to a hearing officer or a single Board member, subject to the procedure of subsection (c) of this section, but shall not be bound by 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 in carrying out its duties under this subsection.

(c) ~~The board~~ Board may delegate the responsibility to hear quasi-judicial matters, and other matters as it may deem appropriate, to a hearing examiner or a single ~~board~~ Board member, to hear a case and make findings in accordance with 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 of Title 3, except that highway condemnation proceedings shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of chapter 5 of this title. A hearing examiner or single ~~board~~ Board member so appointed shall report his or her findings of fact in writing to the ~~board~~ Board. Any order resulting therefrom shall be rendered only by a majority of the ~~board~~ Board. Final orders of the ~~board~~ Board may be reviewed on the record by ~~the superior court~~ a Superior Court pursuant to Rule 74 of the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure.

\* \* \*

\* \* \* Byways Advisory Council; Scenic Roads and Byways \* \* \*

Sec. 28. REPEAL

10 V.S.A. § 425 (Byways Advisory Council) is repealed.

Sec. 29. 19 V.S.A. chapter 25 is amended to read:

#### CHAPTER 25. SCENIC ROADS

##### § 2501. STATE SCENIC ROADS AND BYWAYS; DESIGNATION AND DISCONTINUANCE

(a) On the recommendation ~~of the Byways Advisory Council~~ of the municipalities through which a proposed or existing State Scenic Road or Byway passes and of the regional planning commissions that serve such municipalities, the Transportation Board may designate or discontinue any State highway, or portion of a State highway, as a State Scenic Road or Byway, in accordance with standards adopted by the Board by rule. The Board shall hold a public hearing on the recommendation, giving notice thereof to the municipalities and regional planning commissions, the Secretary, and the Commissioner of Tourism and Marketing, and shall submit a copy of its findings and decision together with its findings to the Byways Advisory Council ~~to these parties~~ within 60 days after receipt of the recommendation. The hearing shall be held in the vicinity of the proposed ~~scenic highway~~ State Scenic Road or Byway.

(b) [Repealed.]

(c) A State Scenic Road or Byway shall not be reconstructed or improved unless the reconstruction or improvement is conducted in accordance with the Agency of Transportation's Vermont Design Standards, as amended. Signs along State Scenic Roads and Byways shall comply with the Federal Highway Administration's Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, as amended.

##### § 2502. TOWN SCENIC ROADS; DESIGNATION AND DISCONTINUANCE

(a) On recommendation of the planning commission of a municipality, or on the initiative of the legislative body of a municipality, a legislative body may, after one public hearing warned for the purpose, designate or discontinue any town highway or portion of a town highway as a town scenic ~~highway~~ road. Such action by the legislative body may be petitioned by the registered voters of the municipality pursuant to the provisions of 24 V.S.A. § 1973.

(b) A town scenic road may be reconstructed or improved in a manner consistent with the ~~agency of transportation's~~ Agency's Vermont Design Standards, as amended. A class 1, 2, or 3 scenic ~~highway~~ road shall still be eligible to receive aid pursuant to the provisions of this title. Signs along town scenic roads shall comply with the Federal Highway Administration's Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, as amended.

(c) [Repealed.]

§ 2503. REGISTER

The ~~agency of transportation~~ Agency may annually publish a register containing a listing of all ~~state~~ State and locally designated scenic roads and byways. Any listing shall include the mileage of each road or byway and any special, natural, historical, or scenic attractions on the road or byway.

§ 2504. ADDITIONAL FUNDS

The ~~agency~~ Agency, and any qualifying municipality, ~~shall have within the authority to~~ of State and federal law, may accept and spend any funds made available to them for the purpose of enhancing or establishing designated scenic roads or byways.

§ 2505. RIGHTS OF ADJACENT LANDOWNERS

Nothing in this chapter shall preclude the rights of a landowner from developing property adjacent to a designated scenic road or byway, so long as the development is in accordance with existing law or ordinance.

\* \* \* Utility Transmission System Plans; Notification of Public Meetings \* \* \*

Sec. 30. 30 V.S.A. § 218c(d)(2) is amended to read:

(2) Prior to the adoption of any Transmission System Plan, a utility preparing a Plan shall host at least two public meetings at which it shall present a draft of the Plan and facilitate a public discussion to identify and evaluate nontransmission alternatives. The meetings shall be at separate locations within the State, in proximity to the transmission facilities involved or as otherwise required by the Board, and each shall be noticed by at least two advertisements, each occurring between one and three weeks prior to the meetings, in newspapers having general circulation within the State and within the municipalities in which the meetings are to be held. Copies of the notices shall be provided to the Public Service Board, the Department of Public Service, any entity appointed by the Public Service Board pursuant to subdivision 209(d)(2) of this title, the Agency of Natural Resources, the Division for Historic Preservation, the Department of Health, ~~the Byways Advisory Council~~, the Agency of Transportation, the Attorney General, the chair of each regional planning commission, each retail electricity provider within the State, and any public interest group that requests, or has made a standing request for, a copy of the notice. A verbatim transcript of the meetings shall be prepared by the utility preparing the Plan, shall be filed with the Public Service Board and the Department of Public Service, and shall be provided at cost to any person requesting it. The Plan shall contain a discussion of the principal contentions made at the meetings by members of the public, by any State agency, and by any utility.

\* \* \* Notice of Hearing on Petition for Certificate of Public Good \* \* \*

Sec. 31. 30 V.S.A. § 248(a)(4) is amended to read:

(4)(A) With respect to a facility located in the State, the Public Service Board shall hold a nontechnical public hearing on each petition for such finding and certificate in at least one county in which any portion of the construction of the facility is proposed to be located.

(B) The Public Service Board shall hold technical hearings at locations which it selects.

(C) At the time of filing its application with the Board, copies shall be given by the petitioner to the Attorney General and the Department of Public Service, and, with respect to facilities within the State, the Department of Health, Agency of Natural Resources, Historic Preservation Division, Agency of Transportation, Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets, and to the ~~chairperson~~ chair or director of the municipal and regional planning commissions and the municipal legislative body for each town and city in which the proposed facility will be located. ~~At the time of filing its application with the Board, the petitioner shall give the Byways Advisory Council notice of the filing.~~

\* \* \*

\* \* \* Property Transfer Tax Return; Exemption \* \* \*

Sec. 32. 32 V.S.A. § 9606(d) is amended to read:

(d) The property transfer tax return shall not be required of properties qualified for the exemption stated in subdivision 9603(17) of this title, or qualified for the exemption stated in subdivision 9603(2) of this title if the transfer is of an interest in property for highway purposes and the consideration for the transfer is \$10,000.00 or less. ~~A public utility~~ An entity acquiring such properties shall notify the listers of a municipality of the grantors, grantees, consideration, date of execution, and location of the ~~easement property~~ property when it files for recording a deed ~~transferring a utility line easement~~ that does not require a transfer tax return under this subsection.

\* \* \* Tax on Gains from the Sale or Exchange of Land; Exemption \* \* \*

Sec. 33. 32 V.S.A. § 10002(q) is added to read:

(q) Also excluded from the definition of "land" is a transfer of property to the State of Vermont or a municipality for a project that is authorized under the State's enacted Transportation Program or for an emergency project within the meaning of 19 V.S.A. § 10g(h), regardless of whether the State or the municipality has commenced any condemnation proceedings.



\* \* \* Evaluation of Adopt a Park and Ride Program \* \* \*

Sec. 34. EVALUATION OF ADOPT A PARK AND RIDE PROGRAM

The Agency shall evaluate the merits of implementing an Adopt a Park and Ride Program, whereby organizations volunteer to clean up litter at State Park and Ride facilities with permission of the Agency. On or before January 15, 2016, the Agency shall either begin to implement such a Program or report back to the House and Senate Committees on Transportation on the reasons it does not recommend implementing a Program.

\* \* \* Effective Dates \* \* \*

Sec. 35. EFFECTIVE DATES

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2015, except that:

(1) Sec. 21 (administration of certain Clean Water Fund monies through the Municipal Mitigation Grant Program) shall take effect if and when the Clean Water Fund is established; and

(2) Secs. 25–27 (naming of State transportation facilities) shall take effect on March 1, 2016.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 25, 2015, page 643)

**Reported favorably by Senator Westman for the Committee on Finance.**

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Kitchel for the Committee on Appropriations.**

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Transportation with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 3a, in subsections (b) and (c), by striking out the words “and is hereby appropriated” in both subsections

Second: In Sec. 3a, in subsection (c), by striking out the words “subsection (a)” and inserting in lieu thereof the phrase subsection (b)

(Committee vote: 6-0-1)

## House Proposal of Amendment

### S. 141.

An act relating to possession of firearms.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 13 V.S.A. § 4017 is added to read:

§ 4017. PERSONS PROHIBITED FROM POSSESSING FIREARMS;  
CONVICTION OF VIOLENT CRIME

(a) A person shall not possess a firearm if the person has been convicted of a violent crime.

(b) A person who violates this section shall be imprisoned not more than two years or fined not more than \$1,000.00, or both.

(c) This section shall not apply to a person who is exempt from federal firearms restrictions under 18 U.S.C. § 925(c).

(d) As used in this section:

(1)(A) “Firearm” means:

(i) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive;

(ii) the frame or receiver of any such weapon; or

(iii) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer.

(B) “Firearm” shall not include an antique firearm.

(2) “Antique firearm” means:

(A) Any firearm (including any firearm with a matchlock, flintlock, percussion cap, or similar type of ignition system) manufactured in or before 1898.

(B) Any replica of any firearm described in subdivision (A) of this subdivision (2) if the replica:

(i) is not designed or redesigned for using rimfire or conventional centerfire fixed ammunition; or

(ii) uses rimfire or conventional centerfire fixed ammunition that is no longer manufactured in the United States and which is not readily available in the ordinary channels of commercial trade.

(C) Any muzzle loading rifle, muzzle loading shotgun, or muzzle loading pistol which is designed to use black powder or a black powder substitute and which cannot use fixed ammunition. As used in this subdivision (C), “antique firearm” shall not include a weapon which incorporates a firearm frame or receiver, a firearm which is converted into a muzzle loading weapon, or any muzzle loading weapon which can be readily converted to fire fixed ammunition by replacing the barrel, bolt, breechblock, or any combination thereof.

(3) “Violent crime” means:

(A)(i) A listed crime as defined in subdivision 5301(7) of this title other than:

(I) lewd or lascivious conduct as defined in section 2601 of this title;

(II) recklessly endangering another person as defined in section 1025 of this title;

(III) operating a vehicle under the influence of intoxicating liquor or other substance with either death or serious bodily injury resulting as defined in 23 V.S.A. § 1210(f) and (g);

(IV) careless or negligent operation resulting in serious bodily injury or death as defined in 23 V.S.A. § 1091(b);

(V) leaving the scene of an accident resulting in serious bodily injury or death as defined in 23 V.S.A. § 1128(b) or (c); or

(VI) a misdemeanor violation of chapter 28 of this title, relating to abuse, neglect, and exploitation of vulnerable adults; or

(ii) a comparable offense and sentence in another jurisdiction if the offense prohibits the person from possessing a firearm under 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) or 18 U.S.C. § 921(a)(20).

(B) An offense involving sexual exploitation of children in violation of chapter 64 of this title, or a comparable offense and sentence in another jurisdiction if the offense prohibits the person from possessing a firearm under 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) or 18 U.S.C. § 921(a)(20).

(C) A violation of 18 V.S.A. § 4231(b)(2), (b)(3), or (c) (selling, dispensing, or trafficking cocaine); 4232(b)(2) or (b)(3) (selling or dispensing LSD); 4233 (b)(2), (b)(3), or (c) (selling, dispensing, or trafficking heroin); 4234(b)(2) or (b)(3) (selling or dispensing depressants, stimulants, and narcotics); 4234a(b)(2), (b)(3), or (c) (selling, dispensing, or trafficking methamphetamine); 4235(c)(2) or (c)(3) (selling or dispensing hallucinogenic

drugs); 4235a(b)(2) or (b)(3) (selling or dispensing Ecstasy), or a comparable offense and sentence in another jurisdiction if the offense prohibits the person from possessing a firearm under 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) or 18 U.S.C. § 921(a)(20).

(D) A conviction of possession with intent to distribute a controlled substance other than marijuana in another jurisdiction if the offense prohibits the person from possessing a firearm under 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) or 18 U.S.C. § 921(a)(20).

Sec. 2. 20 V.S.A. § 2307 is amended to read:

§ 2307. FIREARMS RELINQUISHED PURSUANT TO RELIEF FROM  
ABUSE ORDER; STORAGE; FEES; RETURN

\* \* \*

(g)(1) A law enforcement agency, an approved federally licensed firearms dealer, or any other person that takes possession of firearms, ammunition, or weapons for storage purposes pursuant to this section shall not release the items to the owner without a court order unless the items are to be sold pursuant to subdivision (2)(A) of this subsection. If a court orders the release of firearms, ammunition, or weapons stored under this section, the law enforcement agency or firearms dealer in possession of the items shall make them available to the owner within three business days of receipt of the order and in a manner consistent with federal law. The Supreme Court may promulgate rules under 12 V.S.A. § 1 for judicial proceedings under this subsection.

(2)(A)(i) If the owner fails to retrieve the firearm, ammunition, or weapon and pay the applicable storage fee within 90 days of the court order releasing the items, the firearm, ammunition, or weapon may be sold for fair market value. Title to the items shall pass to the law enforcement agency or firearms dealer for the purpose of transferring ownership.

(ii) The law enforcement agency or approved firearms dealer shall make a reasonable effort to notify the owner of the sale before it occurs. In no event shall the sale occur until after the ~~court~~ Court issues a final relief from abuse order pursuant to 15 V.S.A. § 1103.

(iii) As used in this subdivision (2)(A), “reasonable effort” shall ~~include providing notice to the owner at least 21 days prior to the date of the sale via first class mail, certified restricted delivery~~ mean notice shall be served as provided for by Rule 4 of the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure.

\* \* \*

Sec. 3. REPORT; VERMONT GUN SHOP PROJECT

(a) On or before January 31, 2016, the Department of Mental Health shall report to the Senate and House Committees on Judiciary, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the House Committee on Human Services on the establishment of a Vermont version of the New Hampshire Gun Shop Project. The Department may satisfy the reporting requirement by providing testimony on the issue to the committees identified in this subsection.

(b) For purposes of the report required by this section, the Department of Mental Health shall consult with:

(1) the Vermont Suicide Prevention Coalition;

(2) the Vermont Federation of Sportsmen's Clubs, and other firearms owners organizations;

(3) gun shop owners and other firearms retailers; and

(4) any other parties that may assist in preparing the report.

Sec. 4. 13 V.S.A. § 4824 is added to read:

§ 4824. REPORTING; NATIONAL INSTANT CRIMINAL  
BACKGROUND CHECK SYSTEM

(a) If the Court finds that a person is a person in need of treatment pursuant to section 4822 of this title, the Court Administrator shall within 48 hours report the name of the person subject to the order to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System, established by Section 103 of the Brady Handgun Violence Prevention Act of 1993. The report shall include only information sufficient to identify the person, the reason for the report, and a statement that the report is made in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(4).

(b) A report required by this section shall be submitted notwithstanding 18 V.S.A. § 7103 or any other provision of law.

(c) A report required by this section is confidential and exempt from public inspection and copying under the Public Records Act except as provided in subsection (d) of this section. The report shall not be used for any purpose other than for submission to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System pursuant to this section, where it may be used for any purpose permitted by federal law, including in connection with the issuance of a firearm-related permit or license.

(d) A copy of the report required by this section shall be provided to the person who is the subject of the report. The report shall include written notice

to the person who is the subject of the report that the person is not permitted to possess a firearm.

Sec. 5. 18 V.S.A. § 7103 is amended to read:

§ 7103. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

(a) All certificates, applications, records, and reports, other than an order of a court made for the purposes of this part of this title, and directly or indirectly identifying a patient or former patient or an individual whose hospitalization or care has been sought or provided under this part, together with clinical information relating to such persons shall be kept confidential and shall not be disclosed by any person except insofar:

(1) as the individual identified, the individual's health care agent under section 5264 of this title, or the individual's legal guardian, if any ~~(or, or,~~ if the individual is an unemancipated minor, his or her parent or legal ~~guardian); guardian~~ shall consent in writing; ~~or~~

(2) as disclosure may be necessary to carry out any of the provisions of this part; ~~or~~

(3) as a court may direct upon its determination that disclosure is necessary for the conduct of proceedings before it and that failure to make disclosure would be contrary to the public interest; or

(4) as the disclosure is made to comply with the reporting requirements of section 7617a of this title or 13 V.S.A. § 4824.

\* \* \*

Sec. 6. 18 V.S.A. § 7617a is added to read:

§ 7617a. REPORTING; NATIONAL INSTANT CRIMINAL  
BACKGROUND CHECK SYSTEM

(a) If the Court issues a hospitalization order pursuant to subdivision 7617(b)(1) or (2) of this title or a nonhospitalization order pursuant to subdivision 7617(b)(3), the Court Administrator shall within 48 hours report the name of the person subject to the order to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System, established by Section 103 of the Brady Handgun Violence Prevention Act of 1993. The report shall include only information sufficient to identify the person, the reason for the report, and a statement that the report is made in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(4).

(b) A report required by this section shall be submitted notwithstanding section 7103 of this title or any other provision of law.

(c) A report required by this section is confidential and exempt from public inspection and copying under the Public Records Act except as provided in subsection (d) of this section. The report shall not be used for any purpose other than for submission to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System pursuant to this section, where it may be used for any purpose permitted by federal law, including in connection with the issuance of a firearm-related permit or license.

(d) A copy of the report required by this section shall be provided to the person who is the subject of the report. The report shall include written notice to the person who is the subject of the report that the person is not permitted to possess a firearm.

Sec. 7. 13 V.S.A. § 4825 is added to read:

§ 4825. PERSONS PROHIBITED BY FEDERAL LAW FROM  
POSSESSING FIREARMS DUE TO MENTAL ILLNESS;  
PETITION FOR RELIEF FROM DISABILITY

(a)(1) A person who is prohibited from possessing firearms by 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(4) may petition the Family Division of the Superior Court for an order that the person be relieved from the firearms disability imposed by that section. When the petition is filed the petitioner shall provide notice and a copy of the petition to the State's Attorney or the Attorney General, who shall be the respondent in the matter. The petition shall be filed in the county where the offense or the adjudication occurred.

(2)(A) The Court shall grant a petition filed under this section without hearing if neither the State's Attorney nor the Attorney General files an objection within six months after receiving notice of the petition. If the Court grants the petition pursuant to this subdivision, the Court shall make findings and issue an order in accordance with this section.

(B) The Court shall grant the petition filed under this section without hearing if the petitioner and the respondent stipulate to the granting of the petition. The respondent shall file the stipulation with the Court, and the Court shall make findings and issue an order in accordance with this section.

(b) In determining a petition filed under this section, unless the petition is granted pursuant to subdivision (a)(2) of this subsection, the Court shall consider:

(1) the circumstances regarding the firearms disabilities imposed on the person by 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(4);

(2) the petitioner's record, including his or her mental health and criminal history records; and

(3) the petitioner's reputation, as demonstrated by character witness statements, testimony, or other character evidence.

(c)(1) The Court shall grant a petition filed under this section if it finds that the petitioner has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that the person is no longer a person in need of treatment as defined in 18 V.S.A. § 7101(17).

(2) As the terms are used in this subsection, a finding that the person is no longer a person in need of treatment shall also mean that granting the relief will not be contrary to the public interest.

(d) If a petition filed under this section is granted, the Court shall enter an order declaring that the basis under which the person was prohibited from possessing firearms by 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(4) no longer applies. The Court shall inform the Federal Bureau of Investigation, the U.S. Attorney General, and the National Instant Criminal Background Check System of its decision.

(e) If the Court denies the petition, the petitioner may appeal the denial to the Vermont Supreme Court. The appeal shall be on the record, and the Supreme Court may review the record de novo.

(f) If the Court denies a petition filed under this section, no further petition shall be filed by the person until at least one year after the order of the trial court, or of the Supreme Court if an appeal is taken, becomes final.

(g) At the time a petition is filed pursuant to this section, the respondent shall give notice of the petition to a victim of the offense, if any, who is known to the respondent. The victim shall have the right to offer the respondent a statement prior to any stipulation or to offer the Court a statement. The disposition of the petition shall not be unnecessarily delayed pending receipt of a victim's statement. The respondent's inability to locate a victim after a reasonable effort has been made shall not be a bar to granting a petition.

(h) As used in this section, "reasonable effort" means attempting to contact the victim by first class mail at the victim's last known address and by telephone at the victim's last known telephone number.

#### Sec. 8. REPORTING; DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH; COURT ADMINISTRATOR

(a) The Department of Mental Health shall report to the Court Administrator on or before October 1, 2015 the names of all persons under the custody of the Department who on that date are subject to a hospitalization order issued pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 7617(b)(1) or (2), a nonhospitalization order issued pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 7617(b)(3), or an order that a person is a person in need of treatment pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 4822. The Court



Administrator shall report the names provided pursuant to this section to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System, established by Section 103 of the Brady Handgun Violence Prevention Act of 1993. The report shall include only information sufficient to identify the person, the reason for the report, and a statement that the report is made in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(4).

(b) Reports required by this section shall be submitted notwithstanding 18 V.S.A. § 7103 or any other provision of law.

(c) A report required by this section is confidential and exempt from public inspection and copying under the Public Records Act except as provided in subsection (d) of this section. The report shall not be used for any purpose other than for submission to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System pursuant to this section, where it may be used for any purpose permitted by federal law, including in connection with the issuance of a firearm-related permit or license.

(d) A copy of the report required by this section shall be provided to the person who is the subject of the report. The report shall include written notice to the person who is the subject of the report that the person is not thereafter permitted to possess a firearm.

## Sec. 9. REPORTS

(a) On or before January 15, 2018, the Court Administrator, in consultation with the Commissioner of Mental Health and the Executive Director of State's Attorneys and Sheriffs, shall report to the Senate and House Committees on Judiciary, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the House Committee on Human Services on data compiled with respect to the legal requirements established by this act. The report shall include:

(1)(A) The number of persons reported to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System since October 1, 2015 pursuant to:

(i) 13 V.S.A. § 4824 (persons in custody of the Department of Mental Health as the result of an order issued under 13 V.S.A. § 4822); and

(ii) 18 V.S.A. § 7617a (persons in custody of the Department of Mental Health as the result of a hospitalization order issued under 18 V.S.A. § 7617(b)(1) or (2), or a nonhospitalization order issued under 18 V.S.A. § 7617(b)(3)); and

(B) with respect to each of the persons reported to the National Instant Criminal Background Check System pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 4824 and 18 V.S.A. § 7617a since October 1, 2015, whether the person filed a petition

for relief from disabilities pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 4825, and whether the petition was granted, denied, or remains pending.

(2) The total number of petitions for relief from disabilities filed pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 4825 since October 1, 2015, and the number of those petitions that were granted, denied, and remain pending.

(b) On or before January 15, 2018, the Executive Director of State's Attorneys and Sheriffs shall report to the Senate and House Committees on Judiciary the number of persons charged with violating 13 V.S.A. § 4017 since July 1, 2015, and the number of charges that resulted in conviction, dismissal, and acquittal.

#### Sec. 10. EFFECTIVE DATES; APPLICABILITY

(a) Secs. 1, 2, 3, 8, 9, and this section shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

(b) Secs. 4, 5, and 6 shall take effect on October 1, 2015, and shall apply to hospitalization orders issued pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 7617(b)(1) or (2), nonhospitalization orders issued pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 7617(b)(3), or orders that a person is a person in need of treatment pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 4822 issued on or after that date.

(c) Sec. 7 shall take effect on October 1, 2015.

### **ORDERED TO LIE**

#### **S. 137.**

An act relating to penalties for selling and dispensing marijuana.

**PENDING ACTION:** Committee Bill for Second Reading

### **CONFIRMATIONS**

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and members of the Public Service Board shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Joan Goldstein of Royalton – Commissioner of the Department of Economic Development - By Sen. Balint for the Committee on Economic Dev., Housing and General Affairs. (4/23/15)

Lisa Lang of Waitsfield – Member of the Travel Information Council – By Sen. Degree for the Committee on Transportation. (4/21/15)

David Coen of Shelburne – Member of the Transportation Board – By Sen. Mazza for the Committee on Transportation. (4/21/15)

Richard Bailey of Hyde Park – Member of the Transportation Board – By Sen. Westman for the Committee on Transportation. (4/21/15)

#### **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

**Wednesday, April 22, 2015** – Room 11 – 5:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. – Re: Proposed amendment to H. 361 - An act relating to making amendments to education funding, education spending and education governance - Senate Committee on Education.